
 
Summons to Attend 

 

Full Council 

 

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent 
broadcast via the Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting 
the Mayor will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed. 
The images and sound recording may be used for training purposes 
within the Council.  
 
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However by 
entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you 
are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those 
images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training 
purposes. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Principal 
Support Officer (Committee Clerk) at the meeting. 

 
 
To: The Mayor and Councillors of Haringey Council. 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
A meeting of the Council of the London Borough of Haringey will be held at the Civic Centre, 
High Road, Wood Green, N22 8LE on MONDAY, 24TH NOVEMBER, 2008 at 19:30 HRS, to 
transact the following business: 
 
AGENDA 
 
 
1. TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    

 
2. TO ASK THE MAYOR TO CONSIDER THE ADMISSION OF ANY LATE ITEMS OF 

BUSINESS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 100B OF THE LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT ACT 1972    
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority at 
which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and nature 



 

2 

of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the interest 
becomes apparent.  
 
A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that 
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the 
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the 
member's judgment of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial 
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of the 
Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent, 
licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described 
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct. 
 

4. TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF 
THE COUNCIL HELD ON 13 OCTOBER 2008  (PAGES 1 - 10)  
 

5. TO RECEIVE SUCH COMMUNICATIONS AS THE MAYOR MAY LAY BEFORE THE 
COUNCIL    
 

6. TO RECEIVE A STATEMENT BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL    
 

7. TO RECEIVE THE REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE    
 

8. TO RECEIVE THE REPORTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER AND HEAD OF 
LEGAL SERVICES    
 

9. TO MAKE APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES    
 

10. TO CONSIDER REQUESTS TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS AND/OR PETITIONS 
AND, IF APPROVED, TO RECEIVE THEM    
 

11. TO RECEIVE A STATEMENT FROM THE CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN 
AND YOUNG PEOPLE    
 

12. TO CONSIDER OPPOSITION BUSINESS SUBMITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE NO12.    
 

13. TO ANSWER QUESTIONS, IF ANY, IN ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL RULES OF 
PROCEDURE NOS. 9 & 10    
 
Oral Question  1 - To the Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Wellbeing 
from Councillor C Harris: 
 
Is the cabinet member confident of receiving a good star rating in our most recent 
Commission for Social Care Inspection (CSCI) assessment of adult social care? 
 
Oral Question 2 – To the Leader of the Council from Councillor Gorrie:  
 
What actions to recover the £37m invested by this Council in failed Icelandic Banks 
has the Leader taken since the last Full Council meeting?  



 

3 

  
Oral Question 3 - To the Cabinet Member for Housing Services from Councillor 
Diakides:  
 
Given that works to Sheltered Accommodation schemes have not been included in the 
Council’s Decent Homes Programme on the basis that there is a review of the future of 
Sheltered Accommodation provision; will the cabinet member assure this meeting 
tonight that there will be no stock transfer proposals for any of its sheltered housing 
stock?  
 
Oral Question 4 - To the Cabinet Member for Resources from Councillor 
Williams:  
 
With regard to the recent findings of the Standards Board regarding the allegation that 
he disclosed confidential information in relation to the future of the Wellbourne Centre, 
will he apologise to the Council for yet another finding that calls into question his 
fitness to hold his portfolio?  
  
Oral Question 5 –To the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Enterprise from 
Councillor Peacock: 
 
In the current economic climate it is essential to make sure that people in our borough 
have access to adequate jobs and training for employment; can the cabinet member 
update us on what the council is currently doing to provide this access?  
 
Oral Question 6 - To the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Enterprise from 
Councillor Edge:  
 
Does the cabinet member agree with her colleague and former NDC board member 
Cllr Diakides that the NDC has been 'antagonistic and evasive' on Wards Corner? 
  
Oral Question 7 - To the Cabinet member for Leisure, Culture and Lifelong 
Learning from Councillor Kober: 
  
Can the cabinet member tell us what recent progress has been made towards our 
commitment to make every park in the borough a Green Flag Park?  
 
Oral Question 8 – To the Cabinet Member for Resources from Councillor Weber:  
 
With regard to the recent findings of the standards Board regarding the allegation that 
he disclosed confidential information in relation to the future of the Wellbourne Centre, 
will he state why did he not seek further legal advice from council officers and/or 
through council channels, rather than seek his own advice? 
 

14. TO RECEIVE REPORTS FROM THE FOLLOWING BODIES  (PAGES 11 - 26)  
 

a) Cabinet – Report 7 – 2008/9 
 
 



 

4 

15. TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING MOTIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL 
RULES OF PROCEDURE NO. 13    
 
Motion H (2008/09) 

 
Councillor Kober has given notice that she will move in the following terms: 
 
Mobility Benefits for Blind Residents 
 
This Council Notes: 
 
1. That blind people experience significant barriers to independent mobility 
2. That blind people are often isolated and find it difficult to access basic services 

without mobility assistance 
3. That blind residents face additional costs as a result of their impairment, such as 

using taxis or private hire vehicles 
 
This Council Further Notes: 

 
1. That blind people are not entitled to the higher rate mobility component of disability 

living allowance  
2. Loss of usable sight clearly causes significant independent mobility problems and 

incurs significant additional and unmet costs  
 
This Council resolves: 

 
1. To ask the Chief Executive and Leader of the Council to write to the Secretary of 

State for Work & Pensions, the Rt Hon. James Purnell MP, expressing these 
concerns 

2. To ask the Chief Executive and Leader of the Council to write to our local MPs 
asking that they sign up to EDM number 1982 and write to the Secretary of State 
expressing these concerns 

3. To support the Royal National Institute of Blind People’s (RNIB) campaign on 
securing the higher rate mobility component of DLA for blind people. 

 
 

Motion I (2008/09) 
 

Councillor Alexander has given notice that she will move in the following terms: 
 
This Council notes: 
  

• that 16 and 17 year olds can leave school, get married, have a full-time job, must 
pay taxes on their income, and can join the armed forces, but are not allowed to 
vote in public elections; 

  

• that 16 and 17 year olds have been calling for the right to vote for many years 
through the Votes at 16 coalition; 

  



 

5 

• that disconnection between young people and the political establishment is 
growing. 

 

• the continuing good work by Haringey’s Youth  Council and its members 
  
This Council believes: 
  

• that young people are interested in politics and have valid views on issues that 
affect them; 

  

• that 16 and 17 year olds are old enough to have the right to vote in public elections; 
  

• that refusing to allow 16 and 17 year olds to vote is likely to further depress turnout 
and encourage young people to give up on formal political structures. 

  
This Council resolves: 
  

• to support the moves to lower the voting age for all public elections to 16; 
  

• to call on the Government to establish the Youth Citizenship Commission with a 
clear remit to develop the necessary framework for reducing the voting age to 16.  

 

• that the leader of the Council write to Bridget Prentice MP, minister in charge of 
reform in electoral administration, to show the Council’s commitment to pushing for 
votes for 16 and 17 year old and requesting that the government seriously 
considers decreasing the voting age.   

 
Motion J (2008/09) 
 
Councillor Scott has given notice that he will move in the following terms: 

This Council:  

1. Welcomes the introduction of the Sustainable Communities Act, which became law 
in October 2007. It also welcomes the establishment of the principle that ‘local 
people know best what needs to be done’. 
 

2. Notes the cross party support in the House of Commons that the Act received. 
 
3. Notes that the Act gives local authorities the power to make proposals to 

government on the action government must take to reverse community decline and 
promote sustainable communities. 

 
4. Notes that the Act also gives local authorities the power to argue for a transfer of 

public money and function from central to local control. 
 
5. Notes that the Act also requires central government to produce "spending reports" 

detailing the expenditure of all government bodies in each local area.  The Act 



 

6 

requires that the first arrangements for the spending reports should be taken by 
April 2009. 

 
6. Views the Act as an opportunity to further the empowerment of local communities in 

seeking local reforms regarding Economic, Social and Environmental issues.  
 
7. Appreciates the need to be fully committed to the process to ensure that the 

residents of Haringey have a chance to have their say on local services.  

This Council therefore:  

1. Resolves, when invited to by central government in autumn 2008, to use the Act by 
preparing and submitting proposals on how central government can help promote 
sustainable communities in Haringey. 
 

2. Seeks to establish a representative panel of residents to consult with the Council in 
deciding on which local issues will be submitted to the Communities and Local 
Government Minister.  

 
3. Petitions the government to release the planned information regarding local funding 

for services as soon as possible. 
 
4. Advertises the Act as widely as possible using all forms of media to inform 

residents of the acts existence and how they can get involved. 
 
5. Looks for other authorities and stakeholders (including the Voluntary and 

Community Sectors) who can assist/support the development of the local panels 
and formulate these ideas into practical submissions to the government.  

 
6. Looks at replacing the current community engagement (through citizen panels etc) 

with these proposed representative panels.  
 

Motion K (2008/09) 
 
Councillor Williams has given notice that he will move in the following terms: 
 
This Council: 
  
Expresses its profound regret over the tragic death of Baby P, and offers our greatest 
sympathy to all those who knew him and cared about him. 
  
Acknowledges the swift apologies made by police and local health services, 
recognising that they could have done more to help baby P.  
 
Regrets that it took councillors in charge 48 hours to apologise on behalf of the Council 
for the death of Baby P and the lack of responsibility shown for the failures of the their 
services. 
 



 

7 

Welcomes the investigation by the government as the beginning of the process to help 
restore public confidence in Haringey's children services but recognises that further 
actions are required.   
  
Therefore:  
 
Recognising that this is firstly an issue of leadership, given the failures of services for 
which they are responsible, and in light of their public response to this tragedy, this 
Council has no confidence in the Leader of the Council and the Cabinet member for 
Children and Young people.   
  
Furthermore, calls for a fully independent public inquiry into this case and the state of 
Children's Services in Haringey in order that the residents of Haringey can have 
complete confidence in the protection of the most vulnerable members of our society.  
 
 
 

 
 
Dr Ita O’Donovan 
Chief Executive  
River Park House 
225 High Road 
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 
Friday, 14 November 2008 

 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL 
MONDAY, 13 OCTOBER 2008 

 
Councillors Dobbie (Mayor), Adamou, Adje, Aitken, Alexander, Allison, Amin, Baker, 

Basu, Beacham, Bevan, Beynon, Bloch, Bull, Butcher, Canver, Cooke, 
Davies, Demirci, Diakides, Dogus, Edge, Egan, Engert, Gorrie, Griffith, 
Haley, Hare, B. Harris, C. Harris, Jones, Rahman Khan, Kober, Lister, 
Mallett, Meehan, Newton, Oatway, Peacock, Rainger, Reith, Santry, 
Stanton, Thompson, Vanier, Weber, Whyte, Williams, Wilson, Winskill 
and Scott 
 

 
Apologies Councillor Dodds, Knight, Oakes, Patel and Reid 

 
 
 

MINUTE 
NO. 

 
SUBJECT/DECISION 

ACTION 
BY 

 
CNCL33. 
 

TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Dodds, Knight, 
Oakes, Patel, and Reid.  
 
 

 
 

CNCL34. 
 

TO ASK THE MAYOR TO CONSIDER THE ADMISSION OF ANY 
LATE ITEMS OF BUSINESS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 100B 
OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

 

 See items 6, 8, and 11. 
 
 

 
 

CNCL35. 
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 Councillor Dobbie declared a personal interest in Item 13 – Motion G as 
he was an employee of the North Middlesex Hospital. 
 
Councillor Jones declared a personal interest in Item 13 – Motion F as 
she was on the Executive of the Campaign for Electoral Reform. 
 
 

 
 

CNCL36. 
 

TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING OF THE COUNCIL HELD ON 14 JULY 2008 

 

 RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 14 July 2008 be 
signed as a true record. 
 

 
 

CNCL37. 
 

TO RECEIVE SUCH COMMUNICATIONS AS THE MAYOR MAY LAY 
BEFORE THE COUNCIL 

 

  
1. The Mayor announced the death of former Councillor Max Morris 

who passed away in August. He represented White Hart Lane 
Ward from 1984 -1986. The Mayor, on behalf of the Council 
expressed the Council’s condolences to his family.  Councillor 

 
 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL 
MONDAY, 13 OCTOBER 2008 

 

Meehan spoke in memory of former Cllr Morris.  The Council 
meeting then observed a minute’s silence. 

 
2. The Mayor welcomed Councillor Nigel Scott, who was elected on 

9 October as Councillor for Alexandra Ward.  The Mayor also 
passed on the Council’s thanks to the outgoing Ward Councillor 
Wayne Hoban for his services to the residents of Alexandra Ward 
and the Liberal Democrat group. 

  
3. The Mayor informed the meeting that he had been pleased to 

receive a plaque on behalf of the Council at the official handover 
of the Paralympics Games ceremony on 17 September.  The 
plaque read “From Beijing to London the 2012 host City”.  The 
sentiments expressed on the plaque for Courage, Determination, 
Inspiration and Equality are those we are proud to support. 

 
4. The Mayor offered, on behalf of the Council, congratulations to 

the Council’s Bereavement Team, for a spectacular success at 
the National Customer Service Awards 2008. The team took the 
top award for “Front-line Customer Service Team of the Year” 
against stiff competition from big names including Vodafone, 
Scottish Widows and Cable & Wireless. The Mayor quoted the 
chair of judges Don Hales comments:  "The team from Haringey 
Bereavement Services quite simply overwhelmed the judges with 
their determination to provide the best service for their customers 
at difficult times.  This is a fantastic achievement by staff working 
in a sensitive and sometimes difficult area. The Mayor presented 
Diane Johnston – Head of the Bereavement Team with the 
award, to the applause of the meeting.  

 
5. The Mayor also gave congratulations to the Haringey team who 

saw Tottenham Cemetery named the “Most Improved Cemetery” 
in the country at the National Cemetery Awards 2008.  Judges 
had praised work including cleaning the lake and reinstating the 
waterfall, restoring the chapel and improving roads and paths, all 
of which took place as the Cemetery was celebrating its 150th 
anniversary. The Mayor presented Niall Thompson – Manager of 
the cemetery with the plaque on behalf of the service, to the 
applause of the meeting.  

 
6. The Mayor gave his thanks to the members and staff of the Irish 

Centre for raising £600.00 for his charity at its Annual Dinner and 
Dance the previous week.  The Mayor commented that he was 
laying down a challenge to all other Community Centres in the 
Borough to match this outstanding and generous achievement. 

 
7. The Mayor reminded members that tickets were available for his 

forthcoming Quiz Night on Friday 24th October.  The evening 
would start at 7.00pm and the £10 ticket included a Ploughman’s 
supper. 

 
 

Page 2



MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL 
MONDAY, 13 OCTOBER 2008 

 

 
CNCL38. 
 

TO RECEIVE THE REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

 The Mayor agreed to admit the report as urgent business. The report 
could not be circulated earlier as information was awaited from the Party 
Groups. The report needed to be admitted in order that the vacancies on 
committees could be filled for the remainder of municipal year 2008/09. 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
1. That the changes to Political Group composition be noted 

following the resignation of Wayne Hoban and the election of 
Councillor Nigel Scott on 9 October 2008 in Alexander Ward. 
  

2.  That the Liberal Democrat membership of the following 
Committees be agreed as follows: 
 
Council and Employee JCC 
Councillor Bloch to replace Councillor Baker 
  
Disciplinary Pool 
delete ex- Councillor Hoban 
 
Muswell Hill Area Assembly 
Councillor Scott appointed as Member 

 

 
 

CNCL39. 
 

TO RECEIVE THE REPORTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER AND 
HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES 

 

 There were no matters to report. 

 
 

 
 

CNCL40. 
 

TO MAKE APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES  

 The Mayor agreed to admit the report as urgent business. The report 
could not be circulated earlier as information was awaited from the Party 
Groups. The report needed to be admitted in order that the vacancies on 
outside bodies could be filled for the remainder of municipal year 
2008/09. 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the appointments to outside bodies as set out in the attached 
schedule be approved. 

 
 

 
 

CNCL41. 
 

TO CONSIDER REQUESTS TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS AND/OR 
PETITIONS AND, IF APPROVED, TO RECEIVE THEM 

 

 The Chief Whip reported that following a recent press release there was 
no proposal to proceed with the Woodside House project  but if the 
deputation wanted to be heard she was happy for the Council to receive 
them. 
  

 
 

Page 3



MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL 
MONDAY, 13 OCTOBER 2008 

 

The Council received a deputation from Mr Raj Doshi on behalf of users 
of Woodside House.  

 
Members asked questions of the deputation and received responses 
thereto.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Resources responded to the deputation. 
 
The Mayor thanked the deputation for attending. 
 
 
 

CNCL42. 
 

STATEMENT BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL  

 The Chief Whip moved and it was agreed by the meeting that a personal 
statement be received from the Leader of the Council in relation to 
recent financial events reported in the press.  
 
The Leader of the Council – Councillor Meehan read a statement in 
respect of the Council’s deposits in Icelandic banks.  He referred to the 
communication sent to all Councillors, and also communicated to all staff 
the previous Thursday – 9 October 2008 and he felt that it was now 
appropriate now to provide Council with the latest information available 
and what the Council is doing. (Copies of the statement were circulated 
to the meeting following it being read, and a copy was available on the 
Council’s web site). 
 
In giving a detailed analysis of the situation the Leader stressed that the 
concerns expressed by local people about the situation, and the amount 
of money which was involved was fully recognised.  The Leader gave his 
assurance to everyone that the day to day running of Haringey’s 
essential front line services was not affected.  The Council was doing all 
that it possibly could together with other local authorities who had found 
themselves in a similar position, the Local Government Association and 
Central Government, to recover all of the money frozen by the Icelandic 
government and authorities. The Leader also reiterated that this situation 
was an unprecedented situation for the global economy, affecting 
institutions and business across the world.  
 
The Leader of the Opposition responded to a number of the points 
contained within the statement and asked that assurances be given to a 
full independent  investigation  as to how this situation had arisen, with 
representatives of the opposition group sitting on such an enquiry, and 
that the findings of such be reported back to the Full Council for debate.  
Other Members contributed to the comments expressed with regard to 
concerns of the workforce as to the possible non-payment of salaries, 
and the overall effect on the Council’s Pension fund. 
 
The Leader responded to a number of points by referring to the contents 
of his statement, which clearly stated that the were no issue as regards 
to the non payment of workforce salaries, noting that the current pension 
fund investments were effected overall by the current global financial 

 
 

Page 4



MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL 
MONDAY, 13 OCTOBER 2008 

 

crisis but not by the particular investments in Icelandic Banks.  
  
The Mayor thanked the Leader for his statement and the contribution of 
Members. 
 
 

CNCL43. 
 

TO CONSIDER OPPOSITION BUSINESS SUBMITTED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE NO.12 

 

  
The opposition gave notice of their wish to debate Alexandra Palace. 
  
Councillor Gorrie spoke on behalf of the Opposition Group. Councillor 
Cooke responded on behalf of the Majority Group. 
 
The Mayor then allowed a statement from the Cabinet Member for 
Resources – Councillor Adje in respect  of Alexandra Palace.  
 
The Mayor thanked Councillors for their contributions. 
 
 

 
 

CNCL44. 
 

TO ANSWER QUESTIONS, IF ANY, IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE NOS. 9 & 10 

 

 The Mayor agreed to the admission of this report as urgent business. 
Under Standing Orders, notice of questions was not requested until eight 
clear days before the meeting, following which matters raised had to be 
researched and replies prepared, in order to be given at the meeting. 
 
There were 8 oral questions and 24 for written answer. 
 
Oral Question 8 was not reached in the allotted time and a written 
answer would be supplied to this questions. 
 
 

 
 

CNCL45. 
 

TO RECEIVE REPORTS FROM THE FOLLOWING BODIES  

  
CABINET REPORTS 4, 5 & 6  2008/09  
 
The Leader gave a brief resume of the reports of Cabinet which were 
before the meeting for consideration. Members questioned details of the 
reports and the Leader responded accordingly.  

 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the Cabinet reports nos. 4, 5 & 6 be received and adopted.  
 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2007/08 MUNICIPAL 
YEAR  
 
The Chair of the Audit Committee – Councillor Rahman Khan gave a 
brief resume of the Audit Committee Annual report for 2007/08 which 

 
 

Page 5



MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL 
MONDAY, 13 OCTOBER 2008 

 

were before the meeting for consideration.  
 
RESOLVED: 

 
 That the Audit Committee Annual Report For 2007/08 Municipal 
Year  
be received and adopted: 
 

 
 

CNCL46. 
 

TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING MOTIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE NO. 13 

 

 Councillor Butcher referred to the issue of the amendment submitted by 
the Majority Group to Motion E earlier that day and failure of officers to 
notify the opposition of the amendment by the given constitutional 
deadline.   
 
The Chief Executive apologised to Council Butcher for the failure of the 
administrative process and advised that current practices would be 
examined to ensure that this did not occur in the future. 
 
Motion E (2008/09) 
 
It was moved by Councillor Butcher and seconded by Councillor Newton 
that: 

 
 “This Council;   

 
Is strongly opposed to the proposed third runway at Heathrow 
Airport on the grounds that it will result in hugely increased CO2 
emissions and noise pollution for the residents of Haringey and 
will make it virtually impossible for the UK to hit its targets for 
reducing carbon emissions, which we must do if we are to hold 
global warming to below 2ºC.  

 
Does not believe that maintaining a healthy economy in Haringey 
and London's position as a major financial centre is dependent on 
a third runway.  

 
And resolves to,  

 
To join the 2M (Two Million Voices) campaign against the 
Heathrow expansion as many other local authorities, such as 
neighbouring Camden and Islington, have already done”.    

 
An amendment to the Motion was moved by Councillor Reith, and 
seconded by Councillor Jones as follows:  
 

Insert after the second paragraph: 
 

“This Council recognises the hard work carried out by the ex-
Mayor of London, Ken Livingstone, and our local GLA 

 
 

Page 6



MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL 
MONDAY, 13 OCTOBER 2008 

 

representative, Joanne McCartney, in publicising the dangers of 
climate change; believes that the expansion runs contrary to the 
growing evidence we now have on the impact of aviation on 
climate change and has serious doubts about the current Mayor 
of London, Boris Johnson’s plans for an airport in the Thames 
estuary”. 

 
On being put to the vote there were 29 in favour of the amendment, 
none against and 22 abstentions, the amendment was declared 
CARRIED. 

 

The substantive motion as amended was then put to the vote and 
declared CARRIED unanimously.  
 
 
Motions F & G (2008/09) were withdrawn 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
COUNCILLOR ALAN DOBBIE 
 
Mayor 
 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Body name No of Reps

Standing Advisory Council on Religious 

Education,  The Conference Category: Statutory

5 Term of Office: 1 year Must be Cllr's

Granted Aid: no 3 LAB, 2 LIBDEM

Retiring Representative (s) / Expiry

Councillor Sheila Rainger 19/05/08 31/05/09

Councillor Carolyn Baker 19/05/08 31/05/09
Councillor Jayanti Patel 13/10/08 30/05/09 new appointment

Councillor Catherine Harris 13/10/08 30/05/09 new appointment

LABOUR VACANT - 1 19/05/08 30/05/09

Haringey Admissions & School 

Organisation Forum Category: Statutory

14/saf 3 Term of Office: 1 Year

Granted Aid: no 2 LAB, 1 LIBDEM

Retiring Representative (s) / Expiry Councillor Liz Santry 19/05/08 31/05/09

Councillor Emma Jones 19/05/08 31/05/09

Councillor Errol Reid 13/10/08 31/05/09 new appointment

Groundwork North London Category: Trust

1 Term of Office: 1 year

Granted Aid: no 1 LAB

Representative (s) / Expiry Councillor Brian Haley 13/10/08 30/05/09 new appointment

Proposed Appointments to Outside Bodies

Council 13 October 2008

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT OF THE CABINET No. 07/2008-09 
COUNCIL 24 NOVEMBER 2008 

Produced by Local Democracy & Member Services 

Contact - Cabinet Committees Team 8489 2923  
 

Page 1 

 Chair:                 Deputy Chair: 
Councillor George Meehan       Councillor Lorna Reith  

 

INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This report covers matters considered by the Cabinet at our meeting on 14 October 

2008. For ease of reference the Report is divided into the Cabinet portfolios.  
 
1.2 We trust that this Report will be helpful to Members in their representative role and 

facilitate a fruitful dialogue between the Cabinet and all groups of Councillors.  These 
reports are a welcome opportunity for the Cabinet on a regular basis to present the 
priorities and achievements of the Cabinet to Council colleagues for consideration and 
comment.  The Cabinet values and encourages the input of fellow members. 

 

ITEMS OF REPORT 
 
Community Cohesion and Involvement 
 

2. COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY   
 
2.1 We considered a report which advised us that a recent pan London survey for London 

Councils showed that: 
 

• 49 per cent of people believe their Council ran the police and 45 per cent the local 

hospital.  

• 60 per cent of Londoners knew that their local Council was responsible for the 

Freedom Pass concessionary fares scheme  

• Almost everyone (97 per cent) knew that their local Council was responsible for 

emptying their rubbish bins.  

2.2 With increasing levels of partnership working it will become even more important that the 
Council is able to clearly engage residents and other key stakeholders in a way which 
acknowledges our partnership and community leadership work whilst being clearly 
connected with the services we deliver. Being clear about our key messages and how we 
plan to communicate them will help. 

  
2.3 The strategy set out the principles we should apply to our communications and 

consultation: 
 

Our dialogue (communication and consultation) with local people should:  
 

Create appropriate resident input into decisions 
Be open and honest about why we make decisions  
Show community leadership 
Operate at the most local level possible within resource constraints 
Group services based on their target audience  
Describe outcomes ahead of policies 

Agenda Item 14Page 11



REPORT OF THE CABINET No. 07/2008-09 
COUNCIL 24 NOVEMBER 2008 

Produced by Local Democracy & Member Services 

Contact - Cabinet Committees Team 8489 2923  
 

Page 2 

Represent our community  
Be clear about how to contact us 
Contribute to an understanding of how the council is making a difference to quality 
of life 
Improve how informed and engaged people feel 
Demonstrate our customer focus 

  
We should do this in ways that: 
 

Are accessible to our community 
Are cost efficient 
Use methods most relevant to the audience 
Comply with publicity code and legal constraints 
Connect to key assessments, place survey, residents’ survey, CAA 

 
It also sets out our key messages for residents: 

 
We’re making a better Haringey - 
Delivering better services 
Giving better value for money 
Giving you a say. 

 
Together we’re making: 

A Safer Haringey 
A Greener Haringey 
A Cleaner Haringey 
An Active Haringey 
A Caring Haringey  
A Thriving Haringey 

 
2.4 It then outlined current and proposed ways to communicate these messages 

consistently. We noted that there were no financial implications in agreeing the principles 
and key messages outlined in the strategy. The proposals for new communications tools 
in the strategy would be funded through more effective management of the Council’s 
existing spending on communications. 

 
2.5 We report that we agreed the strategy noting that it would help the Council communicate 

more effectively with our key stakeholders and that joined up communications could also 
support stronger engagement with residents and an ability to encourage behavioural 
change to help us make a better Haringey.  

 

Leisure, Culture and Lifelong Learning 
 
3. FREE SWIMMING – A LEGACY FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF CULTURE, MEDIA 

AND SPORT (DCMS) 
 
3.1 We considered a report which advised us of the Department for Media, Culture and 

Sport’s (DCMS) ‘Free Swimming’ grant aid programme and the related opportunities and 

Page 12



REPORT OF THE CABINET No. 07/2008-09 
COUNCIL 24 NOVEMBER 2008 

Produced by Local Democracy & Member Services 

Contact - Cabinet Committees Team 8489 2923  
 

Page 3 

implications for Haringey. The DCMS ‘Free Swimming’ Programme grant offer had 3 
components: 

 
a) Over 60s – national provision of £15m to be allocated based upon a population 

formula.  Haringey has been allocated £39,367. 
b) Under 16s – national provision of £25m to be allocated as above.  Haringey will be 

advised of its allocation by the end of September 2008. 
c) Capital – national provision of £10m in 2008/9 as ‘reward’ and scheme/ bid 

development, and £50m for 2009/10-2010/11.  The programme and funding will 
be administered by Sport England. 

  
3.3  We were advised that the key financial implication related to the loss of £225,000 

revenue from current levels of under 16 use if we were to agree to free use for this group.  
This would be partly offset by the level of grant, which was likely to be in the region of 
£50,000 leaving an anticipated net shortfall of around £175,000. The Council’s current 
budget did not include funding to meet the additional net cost of this initiative in 2009/10 
and 2010/11 but this had been factored into the imminent Pre Business Plan Review 
process, and would need to be covered by other Council cost savings, revenue support, 
or external funding such as Area Based Grant. DCMS had already confirmed a grant 
allocation of £39,367 per annum to provide free swimming for over 60 customers and 
given the Council’s existing policy commitment to over 65s free use, the level of grant 
would offset the loss of income from the current level of over 60 use, with some scope to 
fund additional programme opportunities to encourage and increase over 60s 
participation. 
 

3.4 During the course of our deliberations we noted the commitment of the Council and our 
partners to improving health and wellbeing and, in particular, to an agreed Local Area 
Agreement Stretch Target to increase adult sport and physical activity participation by 
4% by 2010.  Extending free swimming to more older people and young people could 
make a real contribution to achieving this target and in this connection we were informed 
of the decision of the Barking and Dagenham Primary Care Trust’s decision to make a 
contribution towards the cost of this initiative in that Borough. We asked officers to 
approach local partners including the Haringey Primary Care Trust with a view to 
accessing funds from other sources including the Working Neighbourhoods Fund, 
Extending Activities and the Big Lottery Fund. 

 
3.5 Having regard to the need for authorities to confirm to the DCMS their interest in the 

Programme by mid October, we report that we approved in principle the engagement of 
the Free Swimming’ offer for both over 60s and under 16s revenue grants and Capital 
funding applications and that funding support for the initiative be prioritised through the 
impending Pre Business Plan Review process.  

  

Regeneration and Enterprise 
 
4. LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME – PROGRESS REPORT 
 
4.1 We considered a report on the progress of the Local Development Scheme in light of the 

changes to the plan making process as set out in new Government Guidance Planning 
Policy Statement 12 ‘Local Spatial Planning’. We noted the details of the progress on the 

Page 13



REPORT OF THE CABINET No. 07/2008-09 
COUNCIL 24 NOVEMBER 2008 

Produced by Local Democracy & Member Services 

Contact - Cabinet Committees Team 8489 2923  
 

Page 4 

Local Development Scheme and that the 2007/2008 Annual Monitoring Report would 
report that the following milestones have been met.  

 
  Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) 

  
The SCI sets out the standards for involving local communities in the preparation of 
Local Development Documents and development control decisions. The milestone of 
adoption in February 2008 was met. 
 

  Core Strategy 
  

The Core Strategy would help shape the kind of place Haringey will be in 2020, 
balancing the needs and aspirations of residents and businesses against strategic 
development needs. The timetable for the preparation of the Core Strategy included a 
revised date for consultation stages.  This reflected the changes introduced to the 
process by The Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2008 - 

• Consultation on Issues and Options: February/March 2008  

• Consultation on ‘preferred options’: January/February 2009 
 

Joint Waste Development Plan Document 
  

Unitary authorities were required under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 
to produce a Waste Development Plan Document for their area. The Council has agreed 
to prepare a Joint Waste Development Plan Document plan with six other north London 
boroughs that make up the North London Waste Authority area. The document would 
provide waste projections and identify the mix and location of waste facilities needed in 
the sub-region. The key milestones of the document were:  

• Public consultation on the draft JWDPD Issues and Options including sustainability 
appraisal/strategic environmental assessment – January/ February 2008. 

• Public consultation on preferred options – May 2009 
 

Central Leeside Area Action Plan 
  

Central Leeside was the collective name given to the strategic employment areas that lay 
either side of the boundary between Enfield and Haringey. The primary challenge for the 
Area Action Plan will be to identify investment and improvements required to ensure the 
long term viability of the area as an employment location. The key milestones of the 
document were: 

• Consultation on Issues and Options – March 2008   

• Consultation on preferred options – January/February 2009 
 

 Open Space Standards Supplementary Planning Document 
 

The SPD would provide local open space and recreation standards to meet the needs of 
local communities and visitors. The following milestones had been met - 

• Publish and consult on draft SPD – November 2007 

• Adoption – June 2008  
 

Page 14



REPORT OF THE CABINET No. 07/2008-09 
COUNCIL 24 NOVEMBER 2008 

Produced by Local Democracy & Member Services 

Contact - Cabinet Committees Team 8489 2923  
 

Page 5 

 Housing Supplementary Planning Document  
 

The SPD would provide guidance and further information on the existing UDP housing 
policies. The following milestones had been met: 

• Publish and consult on draft SPD – April 2008 

• Adoption due – October 2008 
 
5.  HOUSING SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT - ADOPTION 
 
5.1     We considered a report which advised us that following public consultation on the Draft 

Housing Supplementary Planning Document (SPD), and the document’s subsequent 
amendment to reflect the views expressed during that consultation, our approval was 
sought to the adoption of the SPD as part of the Local Development Framework (LDF) 

 
5.2 We noted that a total of 14 written responses were received from individuals or 

organisations.  Overall the SPD had been welcomed but an area of concern had been 
raised by the GLA in relation to affordable housing. The proposal for a 50:50 housing 
tenure split between social rented and intermediate affordable housing provision as a 
starting point set out in the consultation draft of the proposed SPD was not accepted by 
the GLA. They advised that it was not in general conformity with the London Plan which 
stated that boroughs should take account of the London-wide 70:30 housing tenure split 
for social rented housing and intermediate housing provision in setting borough housing 
targets.  

  
5.3 To bring the SPD into conformity with the London Plan (2008) the draft SPD needed to 

reflect the target split of 70% socially rented and 30% intermediate affordable housing 
and the report recommended that the GLA’s objection be accepted and the Council 
revert to the 70:30 housing tenure split to ensure the SPD was in conformity with the 
London Plan. Any policy variations from a 70:30 housing tenure split needed to be locally 
justified and supported by a strong evidence base. Further, the SPD could only provide 
guidance on the application of existing policies and could not be used to introduce new 
policy. It is through the Core Strategy process that Haringey could introduce a 50:50 
tenure split which reflected local circumstances as well as being justified by robust 
housing evidence.  Following public consultation on the draft Sustainability Appraisal of 
the Housing SPD, the draft SPD had been amended, where appropriate, to reflect 
representations made, including those made by the GLA.  

 
5.4 We report that we noted the work, including consultation, carried out on the proposed 

Housing Supplementary Planning Document and accompanying Sustainability Report 
and we approved the adoption of those documents.   

 
6. WOOD GREEN TOWN CENTRE SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT (SPD)    

 
6.1 The Council will be aware that the preparation of the Wood Green Town Centre SPD had 

involved extensive consultation prompted by evidence from previous research both from 
the Economic Regeneration Team and The Wood Green Audit - a comprehensive 
assessment of the town centre produced by local residents groups.  

Page 15



REPORT OF THE CABINET No. 07/2008-09 
COUNCIL 24 NOVEMBER 2008 

Produced by Local Democracy & Member Services 

Contact - Cabinet Committees Team 8489 2923  
 

Page 6 

 

6.2 We considered a report which advised us that statutory consultation had taken place in 
May and 25 June 2008 on the draft Document, and that following the draft Document’s 
amendment to reflect views expressed during the consultation, our approval was sought 
to the adoption of the SPD and its inclusion within the Haringey Local Development 
Framework (LDF). 

 

6.3  We were informed that, overall, the proposals in the Wood Green Town Centre SPD 
were welcomed and the following statements received the greatest support in the 
consultation: 

 

• Improvements to Ducketts Common; 

• Encouraging the use of sustainable methods of transportation; 

• Improvements to the public realm and the reduction in street clutter; 

• Improvements in linkages between the town centre and Haringey Heartlands; 

• Improvements in the range and quality of facilities in the town centre; 

• The development of a car parking strategy; 

• The promotion of car free residential opportunities, provision of car clubs and shared 
use parking facilities; 

• The promotion of service delivery plans (SDPs) and construction logistics plans 
(CLPs) for any future developments; 

• Shared use loading bays; 

• Reconfiguring the entrance to River Park House to provide an active frontage; 

• Reconfiguration and expansion of the Morrison’s store site considering an active 
frontage onto Parkland Road; 

• Improvements to Library Square; 

• Long term redevelopment of Shopping City; 

• Improving police presence and measures to increase safety and reduce fear of crime, 
particularly around Wood Green tube station. 

 
6.4 The most frequently received objections related to pedestrianisation of the High Road 

including the consideration of a bus only High Road during daytime shopping hours 
subject to further investigative modelling work. As stated above, opposition included an 
online petition and printed objections. A significant number of representations also 
opposed the demolition of the Civic Centre (re-use of the buildings would be generally 
more acceptable), and the loss or relocation of the library.  

 
6.5   In approving the Wood Green Town Centre SPD and associated documents for adoption 

within Haringey’s Local Development Framework (LDF) we emphasised that a scheme 
involving the pedestrianisation of the High Road was not under consideration and was 
not considered feasible given the road pattern in the High Road area.  

 
Children and Young People 

 
7.    INTEGRATED YOUTH SUPPORT SERVICES AND TARGETED YOUTH SUPPORT 
 

Page 16



REPORT OF THE CABINET No. 07/2008-09 
COUNCIL 24 NOVEMBER 2008 

Produced by Local Democracy & Member Services 

Contact - Cabinet Committees Team 8489 2923  
 

Page 7 

7.1    We considered a report which advised us that it was a condition of future national funding 
for youth provision that all Local Authorities had an agreed strategy in place for integrated 
youth support and targeted youth support which had been agreed with Council Members. 

7.2 We noted that the Council was in a strong position to take the integrated services forward.  
In 2007 the  
11-19 Forum (a sub group of the Children & Young People’s Strategic Partnership Theme 
Board) started to discuss what was meant by integrated youth support from which a 
spreadsheet had been devised showing all the services in Haringey for young people.  
This had formed the heart of discussion and preparation for the strategy.  An Integrated 
Youth Support Group had developed the strategy and had included representatives from 
across all Council services working with young people including Neighbourhood 
Management, the Youth Offending Service and the voluntary sector.  The Youth Summit 
had been in place for just over a year and had been providing a joint approach to tackling 
some of the key concerns of young people and Elected Members particularly around safer 
communities and community cohesion. 

 
7.3 A fundamental aspect of support for young people which underpinned all activities was 

ensuring that young people had information, advice and guidance in order to make 
choices and decisions.   In 2007 Youthspace, a comprehensive website for young people 
in Haringey was launched which provided a range of information relevant to young 
people.  The funding for Connexions Services - Information, Advice and Guidance came 
into the Council from April 2008.  This opportunity had been used to reconfigure 
Connexions provision with the Youth Service and we now had Universal and Targeted 
Teams in place able to support young people.  We had increased the Personal Adviser 
support to all secondary schools so that young people had more opportunities to reflect 
and discuss their career and life style choices. Curriculum opportunities had been 
developed to provide young people with greater choice and vocational opportunities 
through 14-19 developments and especially the Diploma programme.   

 
7.4 The quality of youth provision had been improved and the Summer Uni programme was a 

good example of the breadth of positive choices available to young people with over 100 
courses on offer over the five week period.  Young people who attended last year are 
volunteering to work on this years programme. We continued year round provision for the 
most popular course choice. We carried out a mapping exercise to show provision across 
Haringey and were now carrying out an analysis of need informed by the mapping 
exercise.  We were working closely with the voluntary sector through HAVCO to develop 
a strategic youth link to ensure that the voluntary sector was fully involved in providing 
positive activities for young people. 

 
7.5 The Children and Young People’s Service had a well established Common Assessment 

Framework in place with over 1,000 vulnerable children and young people being referred 
over an 18 month period.  Each child or young person who was referred was allocated a 
“lead professional” who was able to co-ordinate the package of support needed.  This 
included ensuring access to positive activities after school and during the holidays.  

 
7.6 An Integrated Youth Support Task Group, reporting to the 11–19 Forum, had been 

established incorporating the Youth Task Group and the NEET Task Group.  Part of the 
remit of the group was to review existing systems and structures, particularly regarding 

Page 17



REPORT OF THE CABINET No. 07/2008-09 
COUNCIL 24 NOVEMBER 2008 

Produced by Local Democracy & Member Services 

Contact - Cabinet Committees Team 8489 2923  
 

Page 8 

information sharing, so we could quality assure and evidence that we were providing an 
integrated support service for young people. A small working party has been formed to 
lead the consultation with young people and stakeholders to inform and reflect the views 
of users and providers in the Integrated Youth Support Strategy and Targeted Youth 
Support Strategy.  This was being led by the Corporate Consultation Team. A report was 
presented to the July meeting of the Children and Young People’s Strategic Partnership 
indicating the work that had taken place and outlining the next steps.   

 
7.7 We were informed that, in addition to the above actions, the next steps included ensuring 

that quality measurements were aligned so that we could be assured that the provision 
across all services met minimum quality standards.  In order to make an impact on the 
key indicators, an implementation plan was being developed which would identify the 
baseline, targets and lead responsibility for achievement. 

 
7.8 We report that we noted the draft Integrated Youth Support Strategy and Targeted Youth 

Support Strategy and we delegated authority to approve the final version of the 
Integrated Youth Support and Targeted Youth Support to the Cabinet Member for 
Children and Young People. 

 

Housing 

 
8.  COMMISSION FOR LOCAL ADMINISTRATION INVESTIGATION REPORT INTO 

COMPLAINT NO. 06/A/12508 
 
8.1     We considered a report which advised us of the outcome of an investigation report of the 

Local Government Ombudsman, and to determine action to be taken in the light of the 
finding of maladministration, and the Ombudsman’s recommendations. 

 
8.2     The complaint, which was upheld, was that the Council wrongly failed to take a fresh 

homelessness application from their client, or to offer her housing assistance or interim 
accommodation, when she and her two month old child presented as homeless at the 
Council offices in January 2005.   

 
8.3 The Council argued that because it had previously found that ‘Ms David’ was not 

homeless when she applied as such in 2004, it was not under an immediate duty to offer 
her temporary accommodation in 2005, notwithstanding the fact that officers had 
accepted an application from her. On the contrary, it was considered appropriate to first 
make some limited preliminary enquiries to establish whether there was reason to believe 
that she was homeless on this occasion. Officers considered this an appropriate step 
given the doubts over whether Ms David was in fact telling the truth about her 
homelessness when she applied in 2004. 

 
8.4 The Ombudsman ruled that, notwithstanding the fact that it was not his role to tell the 

Council how to interpret the legislation, he nevertheless considered that it would have 
been good practice for the Council to have acknowledged the fact that establishing a 
reason to believe that Ms David was homeless in 2005 was a relatively low test, and so 
should have provided temporary accommodation at the point of application without further 
enquiry.  He  then went on to find maladministration on the grounds of a lack of clarity in 

Page 18



REPORT OF THE CABINET No. 07/2008-09 
COUNCIL 24 NOVEMBER 2008 

Produced by Local Democracy & Member Services 

Contact - Cabinet Committees Team 8489 2923  
 

Page 9 

the terminology that officers had used in processing the application, coupled with 
inadequate record keeping, especially in relation to decisions made. 

 
8.5 The Local Government Ombudsman recommended that the Council: 
 

• pay Ms David £250 compensation for her time and trouble in pursuing the complaint 

• review the guidance to officers on the issues raised by the complaint in the light of the 
2006 Code of Guidance, and 

• address any training needs, particularly in relation to the importance of clear and 
accurate record keeping. 

 
However, we noted that the General Purposes Committee at their meeting on 29 
September, 2008 had amended the second of the recommendations to read – 

 
That the guidance to officer on the issues raised by the complaint be reviewed in the light 
of the 2006 Homelessness Code of Guidance, and that clear-cut good practice guidance 
be in place at all times. 

 
8.6  We report that we endorsed the recommendations subject to the above amendment by 

agreed by the General Purposes Committee. 
 
9. ADAPTATIONS SERVICE MODERNISATION 

 
9.1 We considered a report which sought approval for changes to the organisational 

structures associated with the technical design and project management of major 
disabled facilities adaptations.  

 
9.2  We noted that a Project Board comprising representatives from both the Council and 

Homes for Haringey, involved in the provision of major adaptations, had carried out an 
extensive review of all the processes involved in the delivery of adaptations and 
equipment. A further review of the Adaptations Service had taken place in order to 
identify processes and workflows which could be made more efficient and improve 
service delivery end to end. An extensive process mapping exercise was undertaken 
which revealed a wide range of processes and proffered a number of areas with potential 
for reducing the numbers of transactions, increasing efficiency and streamlining services.   

 
9.3   The key area which needed to change in order to integrate the processes for both private 

and public sector homes was that concerning the amalgamation of the teams of 
surveyors who designed and project managed the adaptations, into one unit. All parties 
involved with the delivery of disabled facilities adaptations were agreed on this point. 
Two feasible options had been reviewed, viz:           

 
Option 1 - all technical design and project management to be undertaken by Adults 
Culture and Community Services, regardless of tenure of property.  

 
Option 2 - all technical design and project management to be undertaken by Homes for 
Haringey, regardless of tenure of property.     
  

Page 19



REPORT OF THE CABINET No. 07/2008-09 
COUNCIL 24 NOVEMBER 2008 

Produced by Local Democracy & Member Services 

Contact - Cabinet Committees Team 8489 2923  
 

Page 

10 

9.4 We report that we noted the improvements in service delivery created by the extensive 
revision and streamlining of processes operated by the Adaptations Service and its’ 
partners and we endorsed the decision of the General Purposes Committee to agree the 
establishment of a single surveying team for disabled facilities adaptations for both 
Council and Non-Council properties. We approved Option 1 outlined above, i.e. that all 
technical design and project management was to be undertaken by Adults Culture and 
Community Services, regardless of tenure of property and we agreed to the necessary 
changes to the management agreement  with Homes for Haringey (HfH) in order to 
facilitate the transfer of the surveying functions  of the adaptations process for Council 
housing, to the responsibility of the Council under the management of the Adults, Culture 
and Community Services (ACCS) Directorate. 

 

Adult Social Care and Well Being 

 
10. HARINGEY COUNCIL SAFEGUARDING ADULTS ANNUAL REPORT   
 
10.1 The Council will be aware that “No Secrets” (Department of Health, 2000) was the 

Government framework for the protection of vulnerable adults from abuse.  A 
vulnerable person was defined as anyone over the age of 18 who was in need of or 
receiving community care services.  This policy had been reviewed and revised in 
2005 and became “Safeguarding Adults - the National Framework for Standards of 
Good Practice”, ADSS, 2005. The new guidance emphasised the need for 
preventative measures in protection vulnerable adults. It was a multi-agency policy 
and social services were nominated to act as the lead agency.   

 
10.2 We considered a report which provided an overview of the work of the Safeguarding 

Adults Board (SAB) 2007/08 and explained how the change had created greater 
ownership of the policy and procedures by partner agencies which had led in turn to an 
improvement in collaborative work between the agencies The report also identified the 
working objectives for 2008/09 in accordance with national guidance, directives and 
policy. 

 
10.1 The new restructured SAB ensured that each partner agency played the lead role in their 

own agency. The North Middlesex Hospital, Community Mental Health Services, 
Haringey Teaching Primary care Trust (HTPCT) and Adult Community and Culture 
Services (ACCS) had safeguarding leads and the SAB reported directly to the Well-Being 
Partnership Board (WBPB).  The WBPB was accountable to the Haringey Strategic 
Partnership and thus linked to the Local Delivery Plan for Health Services. 
 

10.4 The SAB was also linked into the Local Safeguarding Children’s Board (LSCB) and the 
Domestic Violence partnership.  These linkages ensured that agencies were familiar with 
each other processes and work in partnership to investigate abuses in households. We 
were informed that the SAB had an elected Councillor Catherine Harris as the Dignity 
Champion to promote adult safeguarding issues at executive level.  A carer and a user 
representative had also been recruited to the Board to add a carer’s perspective to the 
decision–making process. These new relationships would ensure that service providers 
and users are aware of the policy. 
 

Page 20



REPORT OF THE CABINET No. 07/2008-09 
COUNCIL 24 NOVEMBER 2008 

Produced by Local Democracy & Member Services 

Contact - Cabinet Committees Team 8489 2923  
 

Page 

11 

10.5 Strategic Commissioning played a very important role in providing safe services and had 
the responsibility of insisting that providers complied with the safeguarding standards in 
service delivery.  The policy and procedures were revised in March 2008 to reflect the 
changes in the National Framework for Best Practice, 2005. They were on the Haringey 
web site and could be accessed by anyone interested to know how Haringey 
safeguarded its vulnerable adults.  A joint information-sharing protocol signed by all the 
statutory partners enabled the investigations to assess risks and better manage the risks 
by sharing information. 

 
10.6 There have been yearly increases in the rate of referrals and investigations since 2006.  

In 2005/06 there were 96 referrals, in 2006/07, there were 172 referrals but 158 
investigations and in 2007/08, there were 189 referrals including three joint investigations 
with Children’s Services and five referrals to the Domestic Violence Team one of which 
led to a multi agency risk assessment conference (MARAC). It was envisaged that as 
more people became aware of the service, the rates of referrals and investigations would 
grow and this would have implications for staffing resources. Some black and ethnic 
minority groups in the community were over and under represented and not represented 
in accessing the service. Outreach work to these communities had commenced in 
September 2008 and there was a planned publicity campaign in October-November 
2008. 

 
10.7 We report for information that we noted the Safeguarding Annual Report and its work 

plan for 2008/09.  

 
Resources  

 
11. ACCOMMODATION STRATGEY 

 
11.1  The Council will be aware that the vision of the SMART Working programme is for 

the Council to lead by example by making the most cost efficient use of our office 
space whilst creating a modern, greener, productive work environment that 
enables our staff to better serve our residents. The Accommodation Strategy was 
agreed in May 2003 to improve customer focus by integrating customer access 
points, improve facilities for democratic and civic functions and modernise work 
spaces for employees.  

 
11.2 The estate strategy adopted was to rationalise and modernise using an open plan layout 

the building portfolio that was made up of 29 buildings including two Town Halls, one Civic 
Centre and a large number of offices throughout the borough. A “hub and spoke” model 
was adopted with Wood Green forming the civic and administrative hub and customer 
service centres in four localities; Hornsey, South Tottenham, North Tottenham and Wood 
Green.  

 
11.3 As a consequence the first part of the implementation plan agreed the disposal and 

development of Hornsey Town Hall, Tottenham Town Hall and the release of a large 
number of buildings not located in Wood Green. River Park House was acquired in 
2004/05 to enable the rationalisation process to commence and resulted in the Wood 
Green hub being established. 

Page 21



REPORT OF THE CABINET No. 07/2008-09 
COUNCIL 24 NOVEMBER 2008 

Produced by Local Democracy & Member Services 

Contact - Cabinet Committees Team 8489 2923  
 

Page 

12 

 
11.4 We considered a report which advised us that the Accommodation Strategy had been 

reviewed as a result of the SMART Working programme under Achieving Excellence and 
extended to take account of all of the flexible working options which could now be 
supported through recent and planned advances in IT. Our approval was sought to the 
second phase of the Accommodation Strategy would aid the adoption of flexible working 
and support the SMART working initiative to achieve rationalisation of the office estate 
without the acquisition of additional buildings. Our approval was also sought to the 
proposed disposals of surplus office buildings, subject to finalisation of the 
Accommodation Plan and discussions with Homes for Haringey on their Accommodation 
Strategy and to agree the investment for the refurbishment and relocation to the retained 
office portfolio. 
 

11.5 We report that we approved the second phase of the Accommodation Strategy, 
based on the formal adoption of flexible working to enable further rationalisation of 
the accommodation portfolio and improve the Council’s value for money and use of 
resources by releasing £1.45 million of revenue savings. We agreed to the release 
of the following freehold buildings and site from the portfolio and delegated 
authority to the Head of Corporate Property Services to develop/dispose of these 
sites in an appropriate manner and timescale to optimise capital receipts: 

 
13-27 Station Road, N22 
Apex House 
Car park site adjacent to 38 Station Road, N22 

 
11.6 Approval was also granted to the surrender of the following leased buildings and 

the Head of Corporate Property Services authorised to surrender the leases as 
appropriate: 

 
95 Western Road  
768 High Road, N17  
782 High Road, N17  
5 St Georges industrial estate, N22 
247 High Road N22 

 
11.7 It was noted that some non-office accommodation within existing office buildings 

was proposed for disposal as was the need for it to be re-provided alongside 
temporary decant space to effect the accommodation moves. The major change 
management plan required by Business Units to operate within a flexible working 
environment was also noted. A full detailed accommodation and project plan 
would be completed once the needs analysis examining space requirements 
across all business units had been completed. 

 
11.8 We also agreed that the capital programme be revised in line with the financial 

implications set out in the report taking into account the decision to put on hold the 
Woodside House/Civic Centre project. 
 

Leader  

 

Page 22



REPORT OF THE CABINET No. 07/2008-09 
COUNCIL 24 NOVEMBER 2008 

Produced by Local Democracy & Member Services 

Contact - Cabinet Committees Team 8489 2923  
 

Page 

13 

12. THE COUNCIL’S PERFORMANCE PERIOD 5 – APRIL-AUGUST 2008 
 
12.1 We considered the regular finance and performance monitoring report for April - August 

2008. This report gave an indication of the level and quality of services delivered on the 
ground. It monitored Haringey’s position in relation to a number of indicators that would 
be used to assess the Council in the Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) and the 
Local Area Agreement (LAA).  

 
12.2 The Corporate Programmes delivered the corporately significant projects.  These 

underpinned the Council’s corporate planning process, ensuring that the projects 
undertaken reflected and helped to deliver the Community Strategy and corporate 
priorities.  This report provides an opportunity to monitor, challenge and support the 
Council’s key projects to ensure that they finish on time, to budget and deliver the 
outcomes for the community. 

12.3 We noted that, in terms of performance, overall good progress had been made in the first 
five months of 2008/09. Out of the 91 indicators reported in this period, 79 (87%) were 
shown to be achieving green or amber status.  Highlights included that only 54 older 
people had moved in to into residential or nursing care so far this year that robbery rates, 
arson and serious road accident casualties were all down on last year and ahead of 
target. The report also highlighted areas for focussed monitoring and set out the agreed 
actions to bring performance in line with targets. 

 
12.4 With regard to the financial implications, the overall revenue budget monitoring, based on 

the September position, showed that the General Fund was forecast to overspend by £1 
million. The current approved three-year Council capital programme incorporated BSF 
planned expenditure, completing in 2011/12.  Re-profiling of the BSF budget in line with 
compressed construction timescales had resulted in transfer of £22.3 million budget 
provision from 2008/09 to future years, creating the revised projected spend profile of 
£25.6 million in 2008/09. Competitive tenders due back in October 2008 would allow 
cross-check of planning dates, enabling firm project plans to be confirmed.  This 
virement proposed was to update the Council’s capital programme to ensure that budget 
reporting was based on current project assumptions, although we noted that each BSF 
project would be re-profiled again as construction contracts were let. 

 
12.5 Financial regulations require proposed budget changes to be approved by Cabinet. 

These are shown in the table below.  These changes fall into one of two categories: 
     

-   Budget virements, where it was proposed that budget provision be transferred between 
one service budget and another. Explanations are provided where this is the case; 
     

-   Increases or decreases in budget, generally where notification has been received in-
year of a change in the level of external funding such as grants or supplementary credit 
approval.      

 
Under the Constitution, certain virements are key decisions.  Key decisions are:  
    

-    For revenue, any virement which results in change in a directorate cash limit of more 
than £250,000; and      

Page 23



REPORT OF THE CABINET No. 07/2008-09 
COUNCIL 24 NOVEMBER 2008 

Produced by Local Democracy & Member Services 

Contact - Cabinet Committees Team 8489 2923  
 

Page 

14 

 
-    For capital, any virement which results in the change of a programme area of more 

than £250,000.       
 

Key decisions are highlighted by an asterisk in the table.      
 

The following table sets out the proposed changes.  There are two figures shown in each 
line of the table. The first amount column relates to changes in the current year’s budgets 
and the second to changes in future years’ budgets (full year). Differences between the 
two occur when, for example, the budget variation required relates to an immediate but 
not ongoing need or where the variation takes effect for a part of the current year but will 
be in effect for the whole of future years. Proposed virements are set out in the following 
table. 
 

Proposed virements are set out in the 
following table. 

   

        

Revenue 
Virements 

      

Period Service Key Amount 
current 

year 
(£’000) 

Full year 
Amount        
(£’000) 

Reason for 
budget 

changes 

Description  

5 CR Rev 90 90 Corrective 
budget 

realignments 

Income budget for Housing Duty line 
charges. 

#8
5 

5 POD Rev
* 

740 740 Corrective 
budget 

realignments 

Recruitment advertising expenditure 
budget that is funded by services. 

#8
5 

5 ACCS/
CR 

Rev 25 25 Corrective 
budget 

realignments 

Transfer of post to Facilities 
Management. 

#8
9 

5 ACCS Rev 45 45 Corrective 
budget 

realignments 

Transfer of funding to Commissioning & 
Strategy to cover cost of Head of 
Commissioning. 

#9
5 

Capital 
Virements 

      

Period Service Key Amount 
current 

year 
(£’000) 

Full year 
Amount        
(£’000) 

Reason for 
budget 

changes 

Description  

5 UE  Cap 40  New funding 
allocations 

Downhill Way railings to be funded from 
2008/09 UE budget. 

#8
4 

5 PPPC Cap 121  Funding 
allocations 
announced 

SSCF capital grant funding approved for 
2008/09 by the Home Office.  

#8
6 

5 UE  Cap 35  New funding 
allocations 

Car club scheme in Haringey funded by 
TFL grant. 

#9
0 

5 UE  Cap 185  Funding 
allocations 
announced 

North Circular Road (NCR) 
complementary traffic calming scheme 
funded by TFL grant. 

#9
0 

5 UE  Cap 20  New funding Section 278 reinstatement works to Cline #9

Page 24



REPORT OF THE CABINET No. 07/2008-09 
COUNCIL 24 NOVEMBER 2008 

Produced by Local Democracy & Member Services 

Contact - Cabinet Committees Team 8489 2923  
 

Page 

15 

allocations Road, Bounds Green.  0 

5 UE  Cap 40  Funding 
allocations 
announced 

S106 funding regarding Grovelands Road 
and Lemsford Close, N15 for improving 
bus route priority measures. 

#9
0 

5 ACCS Cap
* 

(812)  Slippage There is some slippage for the Burial Village 
project at Cemeteries.  The outcome of a 
feasibility study at a pilot site to test the 
viability of this project is yet to be concluded. 

5 UE  Cap
* 

(1,054)  Slippage An under spend of £1.1m is projected in 
respect of the Saltram Close scheme. 
Progression of this scheme was dependant 
on the sale of the playground site and a 
capital receipt being generated, which has 
now fallen through. It is unlikely that a sale 
can be achieved this financial year and a 
virement is proposed to remove the scheme 
from the budget. 

5 ACCS Cap
* 

(762)  Slippage There is some slippage on the refurbishment 
of Leisure Centres; namely the Park Road 
Pool and Hall refurbishment has been 
rephased to the summer of 2009. 

5 ACCS Rev 424 860 New funding 
allocations 

The Department of Health have approved 
transforming social care grant as follows: 
£374k in 2008/09, £860k in 2009/10 and 
£1.06m in 2010/11. An additional one off 
grant of £50k has been made available for 
this year only from the Care Services 
Investment Partnership, which is an arm of 
the Department of Health.  “Transforming 
Social Care” is a 3 year programme of total 
change for adult social care leading to the 
implementation of self assessment, individual 
budgets and self directed support for all 
vulnerable citizens who are eligible for social 
care.                                                                 
The funding for 2008/09 is for a team of 9 
staff to develop, coordinate, support and 
monitor the programme of pilot projects, 
briefings, consultation and plan the roll out in 
each service user group. The programme is 
starting in this year with services for people 
with physical disabilities and people with 
learning disabilities and the new access 
pathway to social care.   

5 CYP Cap
* 

(22,300)  Slippage Rephasing request for the BSF project. A full 
explanation is included in paragraphs 17.14 to 
17.16 of the report. 

        

 
 
13. DELEGATED DECISIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS  
 

Page 25



REPORT OF THE CABINET No. 07/2008-09 
COUNCIL 24 NOVEMBER 2008 

Produced by Local Democracy & Member Services 

Contact - Cabinet Committees Team 8489 2923  
 

Page 

16 

13.1 We were informed of the following significant action taken by Directors under delegated 
powers -    

 
Director of the Children and Young People’s Service 

 
Gladesmore Community School – Award of Contract for Pre-Contract Works in the sum 
of £162,354  
 
Director of Urban Environment 
 
Variation of the Governing Agreement for the London Council’s Transport and 
Environment Committee - London Councils have asked for each Borough’s signed 
memorandum of participation by 23 May so that the variation can be completed before 
the next LCTEC meeting on 11 June. 

 
Waiver of Requirement to Tender for Community Safety CCTV Operations - To allow the 
Parking Service to select providers with which to negotiate a contract for community 
safety CCTV without a full tender process. 

 
The Heartlands Spine Road, N 8 Highway Adoption - The adoption of Mary Neuner 
Road, N8 to serve as a two-way road between Western Road, N22 and Clarendon Road, 
N8. The new road is required to provide access to the Haringey Heartlands regeneration 
area.  

 
Local Implementation Plan Annual Progress Report 2009/10 Funding Submission  - To 
seek approval for the submission of the Local Implementation Plan Annual Progress 
Report 2009/10 funding submission to Transport for London by 13 June. 

  
Letter Writing Training - To provide comprehensive letter writing and report writing 
training to staff across the Parking Service. Those training needs cannot be met by the 
standard training courses run by LBH. 

  
Creation of Twelve New Posts in the Recycling Service - To approve the creation of 
twelve posts to carry out the Council Office Recycling Service and Estates Recycling 
Service. 
 

Page 26


	Agenda
	4 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 13 October 2008
	appointments to council 13 Oct 08

	14 To receive reports from the following bodies

